
 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 

 
                           

MEETING AGENDA 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, November 6, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 
19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (Tentative & Subject to Change) 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 6, 2023 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

a) Case HPC-14-2023 – Consideration of Properties for Inclusion on the Historically 
Significant Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay District (Round 6)  
 

5. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW 
a)  Case A-30-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn – Installation 

of One (1) Wall Sign 
b) Case A-33-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 114 S. Washington Street – Que Miso – 

Installation of One (1) Wall Sign 
c) Case A-38-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 32 E. First Street – Rush University Medical 

Center – Installation of One (1) Wall Sign 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS 

a) Preservation Incentive Applications for a Historically Significant Structures Property - 
Alternative Zoning Regulations and Accessory Structures  

 
8. OLD BUSINESS 

a) Amendments to Title 14 – Status Update 
b) Robbins Park Historic District Gateway Signs 
c) Sixth Street Improvement Project 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Public comments are welcome on any topic related to the business of the Commission at Regular and 
Special Meetings during the portion of the meeting devoted to a particular agenda item, or during the period 
designated for public comment for non-agenda items. Individuals who wish to comment must be recognized 
by the Chairperson and then speak at the podium, beginning by identifying themselves by name and 
address.  
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All members of the public are requested to keep their written comments or testimony to three pages or less, 
and speakers are requested to keep their live comments or testimony to five minutes or less. Submissions or 
comments exceeding those limits may, if time allows and at the discretion of the Chairperson, be presented 
after all others have had an opportunity to testify, comment or have their comments read. Matters on this 
Agenda may be continued from time to time without further notice, except as otherwise required under the 
Illinois Open Meetings Act. 
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. 
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in 
order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the 
accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Andrianna Peterson, ADA Coordinator 
at 630-789-7005 to allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 
Additional information may be found on the Village’s website at www.villageofhinsdale.org 

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
Wednesday, September 6, 2023 

 
The regularly scheduled meeting of the Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission was called to 
order by Commissioner Prisby in Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building, 19 E. Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 
IL on Wednesday, September 6, 2023 at 6:30 p.m., roll call was taken.   

 
PRESENT: Commissioners Sarah Barclay, Shannon Weinberger, Frank Gonzalez, William 

Haarlow, and Jim Prisby 
 
ABSENT:  Commissioner Chris Elder and Chairman John Bohnen 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Bethany Salmon, Village Planner  
 
Commissioner Prisby asked for a motion to appoint him as the Chairman Pro Tem for tonight’s meeting.  A 
motion was made by Commissioner Weinberger, seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez to appoint 
Commissioner Jim Prisby Chairman Pro Tem for the September 6, 2023 Historic Preservation meeting.   The 
motion carried by a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
            AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioners Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Approval of Minutes – July 20, 2023 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby asked for comments on the draft of the July 20, 2023 Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting minutes.  Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Barclay, to approve the draft meeting minutes of the July 20, 2023 Historic Preservation Commission 
meeting minutes as submitted.  The motion carried with roll call vote of 5-0. 
 
            AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Approval of Minutes – August 2, 2023 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby asked for comments on the draft of the August 2, 2023 Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting minutes.  Commissioner Barclay made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Weinberger, to approve the draft meeting minutes of the August 2, 2023 Historic Preservation Commission 
meeting minutes as submitted.  The motion carried with roll call vote of 5-0. 
 
            AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
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Public Hearing 
a) Case HPC-18-2023 – Consideration of Properties for Inclusion on the Historically Significant 

Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay District (Round 5) – Public Hearing 
 
Please refer to Attachment 1 for the transcript for Public Hearing Case HPC- 18-2023. 
 
Commissioner Haarlow made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Weinberger, to open the Public 
Hearing for Case HPC-18-2023 – Consideration of Properties for Inclusion on the Historically Significant 
Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay District.  The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as 
follows:   
            AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby asked for any members of the public wishing to speak to stand and be sworn in. 
 
Ms. Salmon provided a brief summary of the process for consideration of the fifth round of properties, 
containing two properties, to be discussed.  Ms. Salmon introduced each proposed property for the list and 
the Commission briefly discussed the appropriate criteria item to qualify the property for inclusion.  
Discussion followed relating to information on the individual properties.  The public hearing transcript 
detailing items of discussion for each property is included in Attachment 1.  Commissioners identified 
appropriate criteria items for each property.  
 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby asked again for any members of the public wishing to speak to stand and be 
sworn in. 
 
Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez, to close the public 
hearing for Case HPC 18-2023 – Consideration of Properties for Inclusion on the Historically Significant 
Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay District.  The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as 
follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Commissioner Haarlow made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Weinberger, to recommend Village 
Board approval for the inclusion of the Historically Significant Structures Property List in the Historic 
Overlay District under Case HPC 18-2023: 108 S. Adams and 322 N. Garfield.  The motion carried with a 
roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
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Signage 
a) Case A-27-2023 – 22 W. First Street – Images Med Spa – Sign Permit Review -Installation of 

Two (2) Wall Signs 
 

Robby Whitehead from Olympic Sign Company was present to address the Commission.  Mr. Whitehead 
provided a brief overview of the two (2) proposed wall signs.  The first wall sign contains non-illuminated 
letters applied to the façade, which will be painted by the client prior to the sign installation.  The second 
sign, on the side of the building will be a re-face with a repainting of the frame and installation of an 
aluminum panel within the frame.  The existing lighting will remain that are low temperature shining down 
on the sign.   
 
Commissioner Gonzalez clarified that the existing frame will be repainted and the sign insert will be 
changed.  There were no further questions or concerns about the application.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Barclay, to approve Case A-27-
2023 – 22 W. First Street – Images Med Spa – Sign Permit Review -Installation of Two (2) Wall Signs 
as submitted.  The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Public Meetings 
a) Case HPC-15-2023 – 24 E. Eighth Street – Preservation Incentive for a Historically Significant 

Structures Property – Request for Alternative Bulk Zoning Regulations, Building Permit Fee 
Waiver, and Expedited Processing – Construction of a Rear and Side Addition on the Existing 
Single-Family Home 
 

Michael and Grace Whalen, property owners, described the scope of work as a two (2) story side addition 
providing additional living space for the family.  Jenna Edelmayer, architect from Michael Abraham, 
explained that the owners are seeking relief of bulk zoning regulations as part of the Historic Overlay 
District program.  Ms. Edelmayer stated that the owners were very interested in preservation the 
structure, preserving the streetscape and back yard open space, allowing light into the home, and a 
design that would keep with the character of the house. 
   
Michael Abraham stressed the rear setback and FAR relief were very important because of the small size 
of the lot.  The extra side yard relief sought would need to be obtained by seeking a variance but the HPC 
must approve the appearance of the addition.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger stated the application is fabulous, the addition looks great and that she is in 
full support of the request.   
 
Commissioner Haarlow agreed that everything about the application is very appealing.   
 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby stated that he liked the project and the lot size is a challenge.  He stated that 
he is in favor of the project and that is why the HOD program was put into place.  Commissioner Gonzalez 
stated the project looked good.   
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Commissioner Haarlow made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Weinberger, to approve Case HPC-
15-2023 – 24 E. Eighth Street – Preservation Incentive for a Historically Significant Structures Property 
– Request for Alternative Bulk Zoning Regulations, General Fee Waivers, including Zoning Application 
Fees, and Expedited Processing – Construction of a Rear and Side Addition on the Existing Single-
Family Home.  The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
b) Case HPC-16-2023 – 132 E. Fifth Street – Preservation Incentive for a Historically Significant 

Structures Property – Request for Alternative Bulk Zoning Regulations, Building Permit Fee 
Waiver, and Expedited Processing – Construction of Detached Accessory Structure / Pool 
House 
 

Joel Rafferty, the project architect of Michael Abraham Architecture as well as Blake and Katelyn 
Geoffrion, the property owners, were present to address the Commission.  Mr. Rafferty, stated the 
application is requesting side yard setback relief through the Historic Overlay District (HOD) program for 
an addition to an existing, non-conforming structure. The setback requested is ten (10) feet instead of 
the thirteen (13) feet allowable by the Zoning Code.  The proposed structure would be designed in 
keeping with the house.   
 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby clarified the application purposes to build up on the existing shed and use the 
relief of the side yard set-back to build out.   
 
Mr. Rafferty confirmed there is no plumbing in the existing structure but currently contains a fire place 
and once had a porch attached.  Mr. Rafferty noted that all other standard zoning requirements of a non-
HOD lot including height, FAR, building and lot coverage were met.  The only relief requested under the 
HOD is the three (3) foot setback. It was noted that there are no other plans for changes or additions to 
the house and the pool project is separate from this request.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger stated that the project looks fabulous and is the type of proposal the HOD 
program was designed for.   
 
Chairman Pro Tem Prisby said he liked the plan, it tied in well with the house and the symmetry looks 
good.  He does not have a problem with the plan and stated it was a good example of an HOD project.   
 
Commissioner Haarlow stated that he never considered a playhouse being part of the program.  He 
stated it is a large lot, the proposed structure looks great and he did not have any issues.   
 
Commissioner Gonzalez stated he was good with the project.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Barclay, to approve Case HPC-16-
2023 – 132 E. Fifth Street – Preservation Incentive for a Historically Significant Structures Property – 
Request for Alternative Bulk Zoning Regulations, Building Permit Fee Waiver, and Expedited Processing 
– Construction of Detached Accessory Structure / Pool House as submitted.  The motion carried with a 
roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
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             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
c) Case HPC-17-2023 – 136 N. Washington Street – Preservation Incentive Application for a 

Historically Significant Structures Property – Request for a Building Permit Fee Waiver, 
Expedited Processing, Property Tax Rebate, and Matching Grant – Construction of an Addition 
to the South / Side Elevation and Exterior Improvements 

 
Randy King, the project architect, stated that no zoning variations were being requested.  The application 
resulted from the new homeowners not being able to move their bed to the second floor via the existing 
staircase.  Mr. King described the addition to home on the interior side of the lot to allow for construction 
of a mudroom and a new staircase allowing better access to the basement and second floor.  Mr. King 
stated the space added to the kitchen would to allow for a table.  The kitchen would be remodeled and a 
relocated first floor bathroom was proposed.  The second story floor plan will be increased by 165 square 
feet and walls needed to be re-worked to allow for the new staircase and increase vertical space.  The 
project will also include the repair of the front porch that is currently in disrepair.  The materials will be in 
keeping with the historic house and the elevations of the exterior side and front will remain relatively 
unchanged.   
 
Chairman Pro Tem stated the FAR requirements were met, the request included amenities of a modern 
home and the application is what the HOD program was intended for.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger stated she appreciated that the original staircase would remain. 
 
Commissioner Haarlow stated that there was concern that the house would be lost and that this is a great 
plan that includes changes that will help preserve the home.  He added that the changes would not impact 
any street views.  
 
Ms. Salmon clarified that the HPC would be making two (2) motions, one to approve the expedited 
processing and permit fees, and the second motion to recommend the rebate and matching grant to the 
Village Board.  
 
Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez, to approve Case 
HPC-17-2023 – 136 N. Washington Street – Preservation Incentive Application for a Historically 
Significant Structures Property – Request for a Building Permit Fee Waiver and Expedited Processing 
for Construction of an Addition to the South / Side Elevation and Exterior Improvements as submitted.  
The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
Commissioner Barclay made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez, to recommend approval by 
the Village Board Case HPC-17-2023 – 136 N. Washington Street – Preservation Incentive Application 
for a Historically Significant Structures Property – Request for Property Tax Rebate and Matching Grant 
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for Construction of an Addition to the South / Side Elevation and Exterior Improvements as submitted.  
The motion carried with a roll call vote of 5-0 as follows:  
 
             AYES: Commissioners Barclay, Weinberger, Gonzalez, Haarlow, and Chairman Pro Tem 

Prisby 
 NAYS:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: Commissioner Elder and Chairman Bohnen 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comments were shared 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

Ms. Salmon shared that the Village has officially launched its 150th Anniversary Donor Campaign to raise 
funds for the Memorial Building plaza and roof railing projects. Donations are now being accepted and 
donors will be provided a pin sign to display in their yard.  Donations can be made at various levels and 
accepted on-line or at Village Hall by check or credit card.  Donations are tax deductible and information 
is available on the Village website.   
 
Ms. Salmon also shared that the Village Board approved the restoration of the Memorial Building bell in 
the clock tower and a new carillon.  Further discussion took place about the significance of restoring the 
original bell and clarifying the at the board approved the bell restoration and carillon project using existing 
funds and the plaza and roof rail projects would utilize donations raised in the campaign.  It was also 
stated that the Library has committed to a significant donation amount.   
 
Commissioners asked how the projects will be marketed and visually presented to the public so they can 
see what their donations are going to be used to construct.  Ms. Salmon stated she would take these 
concerns back to those involved.  Commissioners agreed the social media push and visual aspects of 
the campaign would be very important. Commissioner Haarlow added a buck slip to be included in water 
billing is in the works and it is hoped to get the renderings printed in the Hinsdalean.  The Commissioners 
explored various ways that downtown businesses could support the campaign and possibly the collection 
process. Commissioner Haarlow stated that in an attempt to give residents a sense of how far along the 
campaign is, the website may include the installation of small sections of the roof rail as a type of 
“donation thermometer”.   
 
Ms. Salmon will include the topic of accessory structures and the HOD in the New Business for the next 
meeting.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
a) Amendments to Title 14 – Status Update – No Updates 

 
b) Robbins Park Historic District Gateway Signs 
 
Ms. Salmon stated she emailed Commissioners, the Village Board Members and the Plan Commission 
Chair and Co-Chair, with the three (3) options from Parvin Clauss for the Historic District Gateway signs.  
The options can be revised and the signs would not need to go through the sign permit process.   
 
Ms. Salmon noted there was an error on the image provided and the text would actually say “Historic 
District”.  Options A or C seemed to be preferred over Option B with the arm.   
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Once a final design was agreed upon, Parvin Clauss would provide a final cost estimate that could be 
presented to the board to be included in next year’s budget.  Ms. Salmon added that all seven signs can 
be included as one proposed budget item or the proposal can be to install the signs in stages.   
 
Commissioner Weinberger stated that she prefers the first option, A, because it best matches the existing 
toppers.  Other Commissioners seemed to be in agreement with Option A but with the revision of a 
rounded edge to more closely match the edge of the toppers and a fluted post.  Ms. Salmon will take the 
changes back to Parvin Clauss and hopefully have those changes ready to bring to the next HPC 
meeting.   
 
c) Sixth Street Improvement Project - No Updates 
 
Adjournment 
Commissioner Weinberger made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Haarlow, to adjourn the regularly 
meeting of the Village of Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission meeting of September 6, 2023. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:38 p.m. after a unanimous voice vote of 5-0. 
 

 
ATTEST:  _________________________________________ 

                 Jennifer Spires, Community Development Office 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS  )
                   )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE  )

BEFORE THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of:               )
                                )
HPC-18-2023,                    )
Consideration of Properties     )
for Inclusion on the            )
Historically Significant        )
Structures Property List        )
In the Historic Overlay         )
District.                       )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled 

matter before the Hinsdale Historic Preservation 

Commission, on the 6th day of September, A.D. 

2023, at 6:30 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:      

     MR. JIM PRISBY, Chairman Pro-Tem;

     MS. SHANNON WEINBERGER, Member; 

     MR. BILL HAARLOW, Member; 

     MR. FRANK GONZALEZ, Member; and

     MS. SARAH BARCLAY, Member.  
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ALSO PRESENT:1
         MS. BETHANY SALMON, Village Planner.2
________________________________________________3

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Let's get started.4
Call the September 6th, 2023,5

Historic Preservation Commission meeting to6
order at 6:30.7

Roll call vote.8
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Barclay?9
MS. BARCLAY:  Here.06:31:15PM 10
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Weinberger?11
MS. WEINBERGER:  Here.12
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Gonzalez?13
MR. GONZALEZ:  Here.14
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Haarlow?15
MR. HAARLOW:  Here.16
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Prisby?17
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Here.18
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Elder is19

absent and Chairman Bohnen is absent.06:31:26PM 20
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  All right.  First21

thing, public hearing.22

3

This is for Case HPC-18-2023,1
consideration of properties for inclusion on the2
Historically Significant Structures Property3
List in the Historic Overlay District, Round 5.4
Let's see here.  This is the fifth list of5
properties brought before us for review.6

Do we have a motion to open the7
public hearing?8

MR. HAARLOW:  I move to open the public9
hearing for Case HPC-18-2023, consideration of06:34:21PM 10
properties for inclusion on the Historically11
Significant Structures Property List in the12
Historic Overlay District.13

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Second?14
MS. WEINBERGER:  Second.15
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Roll call vote.16
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Barclay?17
MS. BARCLAY:  Aye.18
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Weinberger?19
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.20
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Gonzalez?21
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.22

4

MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Haarlow?1
MR. HAARLOW:  Aye.2
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Prisby?3
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Aye.4

So during this public hearing we5
will consider various properties proposed for6
inclusion on the Historically Significant7
Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay8
District.  If anyone in the audience wishes to9
speak on this matter in general or regarding any06:34:54PM 10
particular property on the list, please stand,11
raise your right hand, and be sworn in.12

(No response.)13
Staff overview.14

MS. SALMON:  This is our fifth round of15
properties up for consideration for our16
Historically Significant Structures List.  To17
remind the Commission, we have two properties18
being brought forward today.  I'll go through19
each of them.06:35:29PM 20

To remind the Commission, we are21
supposed to be determining if these properties22

5

meet at least one of the criteria listed in1
Section 14-7-3, which, I believe, was Exhibit 42
in your packet.  All you need to do is determine3
if one of them are.4

So if there aren't any questions, I5
can move forward and go through the properties6
and then we can determine if there's any7
commentary.8

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  All right.9
MS. SALMON:  So the first property that06:36:00PM 10

we have on the list today is 108 South Adams11
Street.  This property is located on the west12
side of town in the R-4 single-family district.13
It is believed that this house was constructed14
in 1876 and features the Italian architectural15
style.  It was determined in the Reconnaissance16
Survey that was done in 1999 as significant; and17
because of its location, it wasn't added into18
any other surveys, just because of its location19
in the village after the Reconnaissance Survey.06:36:33PM 20

We are lucky enough that the21
homeowner and the Historical Society have given22
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us a vast amount of information on this house.1
It was, actually, previously2

occupied by Mr. Hess, who was pretty monumental3
in the beginning of Hinsdale's history.  So they4
did provide quite a bit of information and5
background.6

This house is also for sale, if7
anyone in the audience would like to purchase8
it.  It does have a Hinsdale Historical Society9
plaque already.  We do have quite a bit of06:37:09PM 10
information on this house.11

Some of the material in here was12
also included -- it was included in some of the13
marketing materials for its current sale.14

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Anyone?15
MS. WEINBERGER:  There is a lot of fun16

history on this one.17
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  A lot.18
MS. SALMON:  I should mention, it was19

also a house, I believe, designed by Oliver06:38:00PM 20
Stough, who was instrumental in a lot of the21
original home designs in town.22

7

MS. WEINBERGER:  So I would say it1
meets 1, 2, and 5.2

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  I'm okay with that.3
MR. GONZALEZ:  That's fine.4
MS. SALMON:  Any other criteria or5

should we move onto the next one?6
So the next property on our list7

for consideration tonight is 322 North Garfield8
Avenue.  This is, actually, just up the block9
from village hall, located in the R-4 single-06:38:41PM 10
family district.  It's believed to also be11
constructed in 1869, so it's a pretty early12
build as well.  It features the L-Form13
architecture.14

This house has been pretty15
documented as well, it's considered significant,16
and historically significant in the 199917
Reconnaissance Survey and it is contributing in18
the North Hinsdale Survey from 2005.19

We are lucky also that we were06:39:07PM 20
given additional information from the homeowner21
and Historical Society and this house and its22

8

history was also referenced in one of Mary1
Sterling's books, so we did have a lot of2
information on this house as well.3

I believe this is also a house4
designed by Oliver Stough or constructed by him.5
We were lucky, we did have some old photos.  We6
didn't have exact dates on some of these photos7
but I know this, obviously, is polarized a8
little bit earlier.9

MR. HAARLOW:  Because of Oliver Stough,06:39:45PM 10
I'd say it meets Criteria No. 2.11

MS. WEINBERGER:  I think I would add 3.12
It's on a major -- It's on Garfield, it stands13
out.  It's pretty true to its original facade.14

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  So we're thinking 215
and 3.  Okay.16

MS. SALMON:  Okay.  Those are the17
houses up for inclusion.  I am working with at18
least six or seven or more other property owners19
for coming forward in the future.  We still have06:40:22PM 20
quite a bit of interest and more people coming.21

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Wonderful.22

9

Are there any members of the public1
that wish to speak on this matter or any2
particular property tonight?3

(No response.)4
Terrific.  At this time, unless5

anyone has anything further to say, we are going6
to close the public hearing and the7
commissioners will discuss this matter.8

Do we have a motion to close the9
public hearing?06:40:50PM 10

MS. WEINBERGER:  Move to close the11
public hearing for Case HPC-18-2023,12
consideration of properties for inclusion on the13
Historically Significant Structures Property14
List in the Historic Overlay District.15

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Second?16
MR. GONZALEZ:  Second.17
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Roll call vote.18
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Barclay?19
MS. BARCLAY:  Aye.20
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Weinberger?21
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.22
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MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Gonzalez?1
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.2
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Haarlow?3
MR. HAARLOW:  Aye.4
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Prisby?5
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Aye.6

Motion carries.  Next thing to do7
Bethany.8

MS. SALMON:  Next thing to do -- As of9
right now, no one stated any conflicts of06:41:24PM 10
interest, so we can move forward with making the11
group recommendation, which is on, I believe,12
Page 2 of your packet to group them together.13

So someone can make that motion14
towards the bottom of Page 2.15

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  So we need someone to16
make a motion just --17

MS. SALMON:  Just to approve them.18
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  For both?19
MS. SALMON:  Yes.06:41:48PM 20
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Do we have a motion?21
MR. HAARLOW:  I move to recommend to22

11

the village board approval of the following1
properties for inclusion on the Historically2
Significant Structures Property List in the3
Historic Overlay District under Case4
HPC-18-2023, 108 South Adams Street and5
322 North Garfield Avenue.6

CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Do we have a second?7
MS. WEINBERGER:  Second.8
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Roll call vote.9
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Barclay?06:42:13PM 10
MS. BARCLAY:  Aye.11
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Weinberger?12
MS. WEINBERGER:  Aye.13
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Gonzalez?14
MR. GONZALEZ:  Aye.15
MS. SALMON:  Commissioner Haarlow?16
MR. HAARLOW:  Aye.17
MS. SALMON:  Chairman Prisby?18
CHAIRMAN PRISBY:  Aye.  Motion carries.19

(Which were all of the20
proceedings had in the21
above-entitled cause.)22

12
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
                  )  ss:
COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

              I, KRISTI LANDOLINA, Certified
Shorthand Reporter, Registered Professional
Reporter, and Notary Public in and for the
County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that previous to the commencement of the
examination and testimony of the various
witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to
testify the truth in relation to the matters
pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by
said witnesses was reduced to writing by means
of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into
typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a
true, correct and complete transcript of my
shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.
              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have
hereunto set my electronic signature this
25th day of September, A.D. 2023.

                       /s/ Kristi Landolina
                       KRISTI LANDOLINA, CSR, RPR
                       C.S.R. No. 84-004611,
                       Notary Public, DuPage County
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AGENDA ITEM #_____ 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: October 27, 2023 

TO: Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:  Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 

RE: Case HPC-14-2023 – Consideration of Properties for Inclusion on the Historically Significant 
Structures Property List in the Historic Overlay District (Round 6) – Public Hearing 

FOR: November 6, 2023 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 
The purpose of this request is to consider approval of various properties for inclusion on the Historically 
Significant Structures Property List within the Historic Overlay District from the Village of Hinsdale, in accordance 
with the regulations listed in Section 14-7-3 of Title 14 of the Village Code.  

Five (5) properties are being brought forward for consideration on the Historically Significant Structures Property 
List, all of which are located in DuPage County. All of the properties are located in the established Historic Overlay 
District, included in Exhibit 1. Property owners have given consent to be listed on the Historically Significant 
Structures Property List. 

A summary table describing all properties is included in Exhibit 2 that lists the address, date of construction, 
architectural style, architect, historic name, historic significance rating according to past historic surveys 
completed by the Village, land use, zoning district, and any other detailed information where available. Ratings 
for historic significance are based on past historic surveys completed by the Village from 1999 to 2007. The 
definitions and evaluation information for these ratings based on past historic surveys are included in Exhibit 3. 
The criteria set forth in Section 14-7-3(B) is included in Exhibit 4. Detailed property information sheets and 
supplemental information are provided in Exhibit 5. 

Per the Village Code, the Historic Preservation Commission shall review individual property information presented 
at a public hearing, determine if each property possesses one or more of the criteria set forth in Section 14-7-3(B) 
listed below and on Exhibit 4, and make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees as to whether each should 
be included on the Historically Significant Structures Property List. The Board of Trustees shall consider the 
recommendations of the Historic Preservation Commission and may approve or deny the inclusion of each 
property on the Historically Significant Structures Property List. The Board of Trustees may also remand the List, 
or individual properties on the List, to the Historic Preservation Commission for further consideration or for 
additional information without further public hearing. 

Background 
On September 20, 2022, the Village Board approved Ordinance No. 2022-27 and Ordinance No. 2022-28, 
establishing a Historic Overlay District and approving related text amendments to the Village Code and Zoning 
Code to assist property owners with the preservation, restoration, and rehabilitation of historically significant 
properties throughout the Village.  

4a



 
 
 
 
 
 

2 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

Owners of properties included on the Historically Significant Structures Property List may be eligible for different 
voluntary preservation incentives to help with exterior improvements, the construction of a building addition, or 
other historic preservation projects, including: 

• Access to flexible alternative zoning regulations that not are afforded to new construction, including the 
waiving of floor area ratio (FAR) and building height, reduced setbacks, and increased lot coverage 

• Permit and application fee waivers 
• Expedited processing of applications 
• A property tax rebate for the Village portion of a tax bill 
• Matching grant funds 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
In order to be included on the Historically Significant Structures Property List, a property must be located in the 
Historic Overlay District and the property or one (1) or more structures on the property must meet one (1) or 
more of the following criteria: 

1. It is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history 
2. It is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past 
3. It embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or represents the work 

of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose 
components may lack individual distinction 

4. It yields, or may be likely to yield, information important to history or prehistory 
5. It has significance in local, regional, state or national history, architecture, archeology, engineering or culture 
6. It is a source of civic pride or identity for the community 
 
Review Process 
Pursuant to Chapter 7 of Title 14 of the Village Code, the Historic Preservation Commission shall, using existing 
Village studies, historical materials and maps, and their own expertise, consider additional properties for inclusion 
on the Historically Significant Structures Property List at a public hearing or hearings pursuant to the procedures 
set forth in Section 14-1-4(C) of Title 14. Public notice was provided in The Hinsdalean on October 5, 2023. The 
Historic Preservation Commission shall determine whether each property possesses one or more of the criteria 
set forth in Section 14-7-3(B) and make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees as to whether each property 
included on the Initial List should be included on the Historically Significant Structures Property List. The 
recommendation of the Historic Preservation Commission shall be forwarded to the Board of Trustees for 
consideration. The Board of Trustees shall consider the recommendations of the Historic Preservation Commission 
and may approve or deny the inclusion of each property on the List. The Board of Trustees may also remand the 
Initial List, or individual properties on the Initial List, to the Historic Preservation Commission for further 
consideration or for additional information without further public hearing. 
 
Properties may be added or removed from the List at any point in time in accordance with the process listed in 
Section 14-7-3 of the Village Code. Property owners will be notified if their homes are included on the proposed 
Historically Significant Structures Property List. A Notice of Historically Significant Property will be recorded against 
the title of each property approved for inclusion on the Historically Significant Property List to help make future 
property owners aware of the availability of preservation incentives offered by the Village. Applying for and 
utilizing any preservation incentive is completely voluntary. 
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              MEMORANDUM 

Attachments 
1. Exhibit 1 - Hinsdale Zoning Map & Historic Overlay District Map 
2. Exhibit 2 - Summary Table of Properties to be Considered for Inclusion on the Historically Significant 

Structures Property List  
3. Exhibit 3 - Hinsdale Historic Surveys - Evaluation Information / Definitions 
4. Exhibit 4 - Review Criteria for Properties on the Historically Significant Structures Property List - Village Code 

Title 14, Chapter 7, Section 14-7-3(B) 
5. Exhibit 5 - Detailed Property Information for Properties to be Considered for Inclusion on the Historically 

Significant Structures Property List 
 

 
 



NOTES

The boundaries of the Historic Overlay District 
includes the R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, B-1, B-2, O-1, O-2, 
IB, HS, and OS Districts. The O-3, B-3, R-5, or R-6 
Districts are excluded from the Overlay District.
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Exhibit 2 

Address 
Date 
Constructed 

Architectural 
Style Architect 

Historic 
Name Existing Historic Significance Land Use  

Zoning 
District PIN(s) County 

232 S. Clay 
Street c. 1898-1915 

American 
Foursquare   

Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - Significant; 
Town of Hinsdale Survey (2001) - 
Potentially Significant / Contributing; 
Additional information provided by the 
Hinsdale Historical Society and Homeowner Single-Family R-4 09-12-103-016 DuPage 

202 E. Fourth 
Street 1886 

Queen Anne 
- Free Classic   

William 
Hinckley 
House 

Designated Local Landmark (Ord. No. 
O2003-60); Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - 
Significant / Historically Significant; Robbins 
Park II (2007) – Significant;  Referenced in 
"Hinsdale's Historic Homes and the People 
Who Lived in Them", Volume 2, Mary 
Sterling, 1997; Additional information 
provided by the Hinsdale Historical Society 
and Homeowner Single-Family R-1 09-12-224-005 DuPage 

306 N. 
Garfield 
Avenue c. 1890 Queen Anne   

Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - 
Contributing; North Hinsdale Survey (2005) 
- Significant; 2014 Building Permit - 
Construction of an Addition on the North 
Elevation; 2019 Building Permit - 
Construction of Porte Cochere on South 
Elevation Single-Family R-4 09-01-314-015 DuPage 

134 S. Park 
Avenue c. 1904 

Colonial 
Revival  

Charles 
G. Root 
House 

Designated Local Landmark (Ord. No. 
O2002-59); Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - 
Significant / Historically Significant; Robbins 
Park I (2002) – Significant; 2016 Certificate 
of Appropriateness Approval - First and 
Second Floor Rear Addition Single-Family R-1 09-12-207-017 DuPage 

408 S. 
Washington 
Street c. 1910 Craftsman   

Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - Significant 
/ Historically Significant; Town of Hinsdale 
Survey (2001) - Significant  Single-Family R-4 09-12-125-010 DuPage 
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Hinsdale Historic Surveys – Evaluation Information & Ratings Definitions 
Selected areas of the community have been surveyed in the past to help determine the historic significance of 
properties in the Village. These surveys include the Reconnaissance Survey (1999), the Town of Hinsdale Survey 
(2001), the Robbins Park I Survey (2002), the Downtown Commercial District (2003), the North Hinsdale Survey 
(2005), the North East Hinsdale Survey (2006), and the Robbins Park II Survey (2007).  

If available, information collected from these surveys has been included for the properties being considered for 
the Historically Significant Structures Property List to determine eligibility for inclusion on the List.  

The survey sheets include a data form on each principal structure with such information as the building's use, 
condition, integrity, architectural style, construction date, architect or builder (if known), architectural features, 
and alterations. Photographs were taken of the main street façade of the building and any secondary structures 
on the site. Each building also receives a local rating, described below. 

The architectural integrity assesses what alterations to the original historic structure had occurred. Structures 
were considered unaltered if all or almost all of their historic features and materials were in place. Minor 
alterations are those considered by the field surveyor to be reversible. Generally, aluminum, vinyl, or other siding 
installed over original wood clapboard siding is considered a reversible alteration. Major alterations include 
irreversible changes and additions. These could include porches and other architectural detailing that have been 
completely removed and for which there is no actual physical evidence or photo documentation to accurately 
reproduce them; window changes in which the original window opening size has been altered and there is no 
evidence of the original sash configuration and material; and large, unsympathetic additions visible from the street 
that greatly compromise the historic character of a house. 

The surveys rate and use various classifications to determine the significance of a structure. The surveys classifies 
buildings as follows: 
• Local Significance – Buildings were evaluated based on the criteria for architectural significance as stated in

the Hinsdale Historic Preservation Ordinance (Village Code, Title 14, Section 14-3-1) and the factors listed
below.
• Significant (S):  Indicates that the building may be eligible for listing as a local landmark and have local

architectural importance to the community. Buildings are generally not considered locally significant if it
has more than minor alterations, or if it had alterations that were considered irreversible. The following
factors determine this rating:
• Age. Must be at least 50 years old.
• Architectural Merit. Must possess architectural distinction in one of the following when compared

with other buildings of its type: architectural style or type valuable for a study of a period, style,
method of construction, or use of indigenous materials; exceptional craftsmanship; work of a master
builder or architect.

• Integrity. Must have a high degree of integrity in its design, materials, workmanship, setting,
location. feeling, and association, for example, most architectural detailing in place; no historic
materials or details covered up; no unsympathetic and/or overpowering additions. In some cases
buildings with modern siding materials were included if it was determined the siding could be
removed

• Contributing (C): Indicates that it is considered a contributing building in the locally designated historic
district. These building are generally not individually architecturally distinctive by have identifiable
characteristics of a historic building and contribute to the character of a locally designated historic district.
The following factors determine this rating:
• Age. Must be at least 50 years old.
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• Architectural Merit. Does not necessarily possess individual distinction, but is a historic structure
with the characteristic design and details of its period.

• Integrity. May have a moderate degree of integrity, but is of a common design with no particular
architectural distinction to set it apart from others of its type.

• Non-Contributing (NC): Indicates a non-contributing building in the local historic district. Integrity, that is,
the degree of original design and historic material remaining in place, was factored into the evaluation.
These are generally buildings have are non-historic or have been so altered that they are no longer
recognized as historic. The following factors determine this rating:
• Age. Buildings less than 50 years old.
• Integrity. Any building at least 50 years old whose integrity is so poor that all historic materials and

details are missing or completely covered up and its historic massing and/or roofline cannot be
discerned. Poor integrity was present if all these factors were missing: original shape and/or massing;
original siding; original windows and window openings; original architectural detail and trim.

• National Register of Historic Places Rating – Buildings were analyzed for potential individual National Register
of Historic Places listing in consultation with the National Register Coordinator of the Illinois Historic
Preservation Agency. An "N" (no) indicates that it would not. “Criteria” refers to the National Register criteria
that were considered. A "Y" (yes) indicates that the surveyed building likely would be a good candidate for
individual listing on the National Register.  The sub-ratings are defined as follows:
• Eligible for Individual Listing (Y or N):  Must be a site, building, structure, or object that is at least 50 years

old (unless it has achieved exceptional significance) and meets one of the following criteria: (a) it is
associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history; (b)
it may be associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; (c) it is architecturally significant, that
is, embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or represents the
work of a master, or possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and distinguishable entity
whose components may lack individual distinction. It must also possess integrity of location, design,
setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association.

• Contributing to a Historic District (C):
• Age. Must have been built or standing during the period of historic significance.
• Integrity. Any building that possesses enough integrity to still be identified as historic.

• Non-contributing to a Historic District (NC):
• Age. Any building or secondary structure built after the period of significance or less than 50 years

old. 
• Integrity. Any structure that has been so completely altered within the last 50 years that it is no longer

recognizable as historic.

• Other Notations: The notations under “listed on existing survey” include IHSS, which indicates the building
was included in the Illinois Historic Structures Survey, completed by the State Historic Preservation Office in
the early 1970s, or NRHP, which indicates that the building is individually listed on the National Register of
Historic Places. There is also a field entitled Landmark List, which includes the following additional notations:
• Arch Gems: Property noted in “The Village of Hinsdale: Architectural Gems,” a 1995 brochure published

by the Hinsdale Architectural Society.
• Arch Walks: Property noted in “The Village of Hinsdale: Architectural Walks,” a 1995 brochure published

by the Hinsdale Architectural Society.
• DCHI: Listed in the DuPage County Cultural and Historical Inventory.
• HHS/plaque: Awarded a plaque by the Hinsdale Historical Society.
• HHSF: Property has an individual file at the Hinsdale Historical Society.
• HTB: Property mentioned in “Hinsdale the Beautiful,” Campbell’s Illustrated Journal, November 1897.
• Zook: Listed in an unpublished inventory of homes in Hinsdale built by architect R. Harold Zook.



Exhibit 4 

VILLAGE CODE TITLE 14 - HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
CHAPTER 7 - HISTORIC OVERLAY DISTRICT  

14-7-3: HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST:

B. Review Criteria. In order for a property to be deemed to host a Historically Significant Structure and
be included on the Historically Significant Structures Property List, a property must be located within the
Historic Overlay District and meet one (1) or more of the following criteria:

1. The property or one (1) or more structures on the property are associated with events that have
made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our history;

2. The property or one (1) or more structures on the property are associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past;

3. One (1) or more structures on the property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type,
period, or method of construction, or represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic
values, or represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual
distinction;

4. The property or one (1) or more structures on the property yields, or may be likely to yield,
information important to history or prehistory;

5. The property or one (1) or more structures on the property has significance in local, regional, state
or national history, architecture, archeology, engineering or culture; or

6. The property or one (1) or more structures on the property is a source of civic pride or identity for
the community.



Village of Hinsdale 
Community Development Department 

19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (630) 789-7030 
 

 

HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST  
PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET 

 
Address 
232 S. Clay Street 

 

County 
DuPage 

PIN / Parcel Number 
09-12-103-016 

Zoning District 
R-4 Single Family Zoning District 

Land Use 
Single-Family 

Historic Name 
N/A 

Architect 
N/A 
Date Constructed 
c. 1898-1915 
Architectural Style 
American Foursquare 

Past Historic Surveys / Historic Significance 
• Reconnaissance Survey (1999) – Significant 
• Town of Hinsdale Survey (2001) - Potentially Significant / Contributing 
• Additional information provided by the Hinsdale Historical Society and Homeowner 

Additional Photos 

 







Hinsdale Historical Society
House History Research Program

Findings Sheet

232 South Clay Street

Current Resident/Owner: Rene and Gus Wonais

Street Address: 232 South Clay Street, Hinsdale, Illinois
Street Address Prior to 1932: 62 South Clay Street
Property Index Number: 09-12-103-016
Legal Description of Property: Lot 16 in Block 9 in J. I. Case’s Addition to Hinsdale

Year in which home believed built: 1908

First owner:William Braun

Research Completed by: Katharine Korte Andrew, 2023

Previous Owners:
2021-present Rene and Gus Wonais
2009-2021 James and Diane Nelson
1986-2009 Jeanette and James De Phillips / Jeanette and William M. McDowell
1960-1986 George J. and Marguerite H. Lehner
1941-1960 Marion Braun Schaper and L. H. Schaper
1908-1941 William Braun

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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Reasons for Concluding Year in Which House was Built (Refer to
Attached Worksheets)

The research to find the history of a Hinsdale home involves searches of DuPage County
records in order to disclose all of the owners of the lot on which it stands since private property was
recognized in the area, and the assessed values during the period of years when the house was
erected. The identification of the year the house was erected is based on the significant increase in a
particular year in the assessed value for the lot on which it stands. If the assessed value of a lot is to be
$25 in one year, such as 1908, and in the following year is several hundred dollars higher, there is
reason to believe that something was built there in 1908. The assessed value of a lot in any year is
based on its condition in the preceding year.

To find the age of the home at 232 South Clay Street, DuPage County records of assessed
values were reviewed for the period between 1900 and 1960, and reveal that in 1908, the lot was
assessed at $60.00 and in 1910 it was assessed at $600.00. This indicates that the property increased
in value significantly between 1908 and 1910. However, the tax assessment records for 1909 are
incomplete, leaving a gap in the record to determine the assessed value and age. However, looking at
old city directories, we can see “Wm. Braun” listed as living at the corner of Clay and 4th Street in the
1909 directory. This helps determine the age, since the data in this directory was collected at the end of
1908. Given this, the increase in value between 1908 and 1910, it is safe to conclude that the home
was built in 1908.

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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Other Information of Interest

Previous Residents
The first resident of 232 South Clay was William Braun (1872-1940). He was born in 1872 in Sinsheim,
Rhein-Neckar-Kreis, Baden-Württemberg, Germany and arrived in the United States around 1890. He
married Sophie Rosenwindale, also a German immigrant, on 17 May 1905. They had two children
together, Frank C. Braun and Marion Braun, which they raised in 232 South Clay. William worked as a
carpenter and contractor throughout his life in Hinsdale.

The second owner of the home was William’s daughter, Marion, and her husband, Leonard H. Schaper,
who was an insurance underwriter. They raised their son, William Schaper, in the home.

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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Property Transaction Worksheet by Grantor
Compiler: Katharine Korte Andrew, Society Manager

Document Number Grantor (Seller) Grantee (Buyer) Instrument 1. Date of Instrument
2. Date of Filing

Property Description

R2021-164792 Nelson, James
Nelson, Diane

Wonais, Constantine
J.
Wonais, Irene M.
Wonais Trust

Deed 10/20/2021
11/10/2021

Lot 16 in Block 9 in J. I. Case’s
Addition to Hinsdale

R2009-132908 De Phillips, James
De Phillips, Jeanette
McDowell, Jeanette

Nelson, James
Nelson, Diane

Deed 8/7/2009
8/26/2009

Same as above.

R1986-019798 Lehner, George J.
Lehner, Marguerite H.

McDowell, Jeanette
McDowell, William M.

Deed 2/12/1986
3/3/1986

Same as above.

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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Property Tax Worksheet
Compiler: Katharine Korte Andrew, Society Manager

Year Person Whose Name Assessed SubDivision of Lot Lot Block Valuation Total Tax Remarks

1960 L. H. Schaper 16 9 $7,820.00 $315.40 Paid by George Lehner

1951 L. H. Schaper 16 9 $8,850.00 $220.46

1945 Marion Braun Schaper 16 9 $1,560.00 $102.18 Paid by L. H. Schaper

1941 William Braun 16 9 $1,560.00 $107.64 Paid by L. H. Schaper

1940 William Braum 16 9 $1,560.00 $107.64

1930 Wm. Braun 16 9 $2,380.00 $154.94

1920 William Braun 16 9 $900.00 $77.67

1910 William Braun 16 9 $600.00 $32.97

1909 Property Tax Book for Hinsdale is missing from DuPage County Archives

1908 H. M. Fox 16 9 $60.00 $5.64 Paid by Wm. Braun

1907 Pet. Hoffmann 16 9 $60.00 $4.58

1906 H. M. Fox 16 9 $63.00 $4.68

1905 H. M. Fox 16 9 $60.00 $4.42

1904 Property Tax Book for Hinsdale is missing from DuPage County Archives

1903 H. M. Fox 16 9 $60.00 $1.37

1902 Property Tax Book for Hinsdale is missing from DuPage County Archives

1901 H. M. Fox 16 9 $60.00 $1.92

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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1900 H. M. Fox 16 9 $51.00 $1.83

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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Other Sources

City Directories

1907 Telephone Directory
- No one listed at 62 Clay

1909 Doings Directory (from information compiled in 1908)
- Braum, Wm. 4th & Clay sts. carpenter.

Downer’s Grove Township Assessors Records
Year Built: 1898
Grade: 1.65
Exterior: Frame
Style: 2 Story
Living Area: 2,397
Full Baths: 3
Basement: Partial
Basement SF: 780
Garage SF: 580
Additions and modifications:

- 2003: front porch modified
- 1988: 2nd back addition
- 1976: 1st back addition
- 1972: 20x11ft garage added onto original garage

Newspaper Articles
“Local Happenings,” The Hinsdale Doings, 29 November 1934. Accessed at the Hinsdale
Historical Society Archives, 302 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois; “232 South Clay Street,”
House Files Collection.

“William Braun is building an addition on his home at 232 South Clay Street. The
improvement will include an additional room, and space for an enclosed entrance to his
first floor and basement in the rear.”

1910 Census
Lists William, Sophie, Frank, and Mary Braun living at 62 South Clay Street in May 1910.

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
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1920 Census
Lists William, Sophie, Frank, and Mary Braunb living at 62 South Clay Street with a roomer Edw
Hilderbrandt

Hinsdale Historical Society • P.O. Box 336, Hinsdale, Illinois 60522 • www.hinsdalehistory.org
8

http://www.hinsdalehistory.org


Downers Grove Township Assessor's 
Office Property Improvement Sketch



December 1919 - Sanborn Fire Insurance Map from Hinsdale, Du Page 
And Cook Counties, Illinois.
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Village of Hinsdale 
Community Development Department 

19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (630) 789-7030 
 

 
HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST  

PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET 
 

Address 
202 E. Fourth Street 

 

County 
DuPage 

PIN / Parcel Number 
09-12-224-005 

Zoning District 
R-1 Single Family Zoning District 

Land Use 
Single-Family 

Historic Name 
William Hinckley House 

Architect 
N/A 
Date Constructed 
1886 
Architectural Style 
Queen Anne 

Past Historic Surveys / Historic Significance 
• Designated Local Landmark (Ord. No. O2003-60) 
• Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - Significant / Historically Significant 
• Robbins Park II (2007) – Significant 
• Referenced in "Hinsdale's Historic Homes and the People Who Lived in Them", Vol. 2, Mary Sterling, 1997 
• Additional information provided by the Hinsdale Historical Society and Homeowner 

 





















were built throughout the country until 1930. 
After 1930, during lhe modem period, popular 
house types included the Ranch and the Split 
Level. There are 20 examples of20111-century 
popular types in the survey area including 
American Foursquare., Bungalow, Ranches, 
and Split Levels. 

The following sections describe the high•style 
architecture, 19~'-century vernacular house 
types, and 20tb -century popular house types 
represented in the Robbins Il survey area. 
Only styles and types that have at least two 
examples, of which at least one must be rated 
significant, are discussed in detail. The 
examples of these styles and types chosen for 
illustration are, in most cases, those ranked 
locally significant. In some cases it was not 
possible to illustrate all the significant-ranked 
buildings in a particular style because there 
were several. 

HIGH-STYLE ARCHITECTURE 

The survey area contains a mix of high-style 
buildings dating from the late 19•h and early 
-part of the 20th centuries. Of the 267 buildings 
surveyed, 228 can be categorized as high-style 
architectw-e. 1l1e most popular historic styles 
in the survey area are the Colonial Revival 
and (63 examples, including five Colonial 
Revival Cottages) and the Tudor Revival style 
(22 examples, including one Tudor Revival 
Cottage). Other common historic styles 
include Craftsman and Craftsman Bungalow 
(19), French Eclectic (18), Classical Revival 
{seven), Queen Anne (four) and Queen Anne­
Free Classic (two), Shingle Style (four), and 
Dutch Colonial Revival (four). Other historic 
styles that have three or fewer examples 
include Italianate (two), Prairie Style (three), 
Italian Renaissance (two), Gothic Revival 
(one), Cape Cod (one), Mediterranean Revival 

(one), and Spanish Colonial Revival {one). 
There are 61 residential structures that are 
classified as Nee-Traditional. These are new 
horoes that have been designed to resemble 
historic styles. Some of them are very faithful 
reproductions of historic styles while others 
are more creative ,in their interpretation. 
Unfort,.mately, no matter how skilled the 
architect, these homes do not add to the 
historic character of the community. The trend 
to demolish authentic historic homes in 
Hinsdale and replace them with re-creations 
has been accelerating in recenl years. 

QUEEN ANNE 
Queen Anne style houses were built all over 
the country from 1880 until approximately 
1910. The style was named and popularized 
by a group of l 91

~ -century English architects 
led by Richard Norman Shaw. Its roots are 
found in styles prevalent during the 
Elizabethan and Jacobean periods in Englm1d. 
1t is characterized by asymmetry and 
irregularity in overall shape, facades, and 
roofs. The Queen Anne house often has 
gables, dormers, round or polygonal towers, 
and wings with full or \I\Tap arolllld porches. 

A variety of materials and patterns are used to 
break up the surface of the walls. Shingles and 
clapboard are often combined, sometimes with 
brick masonry. The simpler examples, built 
after 1893 {reflecting the innuencc of the 
World's Columbian Exposition in Chicago), 
frequently have classical or square columns. 
These later examples are sometimes referred 
to as Free Classic Queen Anne-style houses. 

Among the 19tl'-century high-style residential 
structures in the survey area, the Queen Anne 
style has the most examples, with four early 
Queen Anne residences and two Free Classic 
houses. Both of the Queen Anne-Free Classic 

18 Architectural Resources in the Robbins II Survey Area 
Gronockl Hlsloric Consultonls, 2007 
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examples- the Hindley House at 202 E. 
Fourth Street (1886/c. 1905) and 612 S. 
Garfield Street (1904 )- have been ranked as 
locally s ignificant. 

The William Hinckley House, a towering 
Queen Anne residence on Fourth Street, was 
originally constructed in 1886. Initially, the 

202 E. Fourth Street 

house exhibited many of the characteristic 
features of Queen Ann.e residential 
architecture from the 1880s. Toe turned 
columns, balustrade, and frieze of Lhe front 
porch, the tall, steeply pitched conical roof 
and fish scale shingles on the comer tower 
were typical elements. Around l 905, the 
house was renovated, and several Free Classic 
elements were added. Most obvious are the 
paired Ionic columns on the front porch, and 
the lowered roof on the corner tower. These 
new features, along with the enclosed gables 
that resemble triangular pediments, give the 
house a more classical appearance that was 
popular at the tum of the 201

& century. The 
house was designated as a local landmark in 
December of 2003. 

A more modest example of the Queen Anne­
Free Classic style can be found at 612 S. 
Garfield Street. The massing resembles the 
Gable Front vernacular type, but the detailing, 

including the Palladlan vvindow centered in 
the top gable, the cornice returns, and the 
,,:rap around porch with simple, round 

612 S. Garfield Street 

columns and triangular pediment, is 
characteristic of Free Classic architecture. 
The house is listed on the Tllinois Historic 
Structures Survey. 

SHINGLE STYLE 
The Shingle Style, popular bet ween J 880 and 
1900, is a variable style that borrows 
characteristics from several other styles. Many 
are closely related to the Queen Anne style 
with a facade that is usually asymmetrical, 
withjrregular, steeply pitched rooflines having 
cross-gables and multi-level eaves. Others 
have Colonial Revival or Dutch Colonial 
Revival-style features such as garnbrel roofs, 
classical columns, and Palladian windows. 
Large porches are also conunon. The 
distinguishing feature that sets this style apart 
is the use of continuous wood shingles 
cladding the roof and walls and wTapping the 
house like a skin. Shingled walls may curve 
imo recessed windows. Sometimes even 
porche·S and stair rails are covered with 
shingles. There are four Shingle Style houses 
in the Robbins II survey area. The two 
significant rated examples are 138 E. Fourth 
Street ( c. 189 5) and the S. Delano House at 
725 S. Garfield Street (1905). 

Architectural Resources In lhe Robbins U Survey Area 
Granacki His1oric Consultants. 2007 
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"Hinsdale's Historic Homes and the People Who Lived in Them", 
Volume 2, Mary Sterling, 1997





Village of Hinsdale 
Community Development Department 

19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (630) 789-7030 
 

 
HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST  

PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET 
 

Address 
306 N. Garfield Avenue 

 

County 
DuPage 

PIN / Parcel Number 
09-01-314-015 

Zoning District 
R-4 Single Family Zoning District 

Land Use 
Single-Family  

Historic Name 
N/A 

Architect 
N/A 

Date Constructed 
c.1890 

Architectural Style 
Queen Anne  

Past Historic Surveys / Historic Significance 
• Reconnaissance Survey (1999) – Contributing 
• North Hinsdale Survey (2005) – Significant 
• 2014 Building Permit - Construction of an Addition on the North Elevation 
• 2019 Building Permit - Construction of Porte Cochere on South Elevation 

Additional Photos 
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Heman and Phebe A. Fox 
. . i '>' ---'~ House, 206 N. \.Vasbingtou 

-,'?':' Street, 1890 
The Heman Fox house is an 
excellelll example of the 
typical exuberance of the 
Queen Anne style, with its 
multiple gables, Lowers, and 
porches. lt.s most distinctive 
feature is probably the round 
comer lower with bell-shaped 
roof. Other features include 
the wood cornice with denlil 
and rope trirn under the 
eaves, diamond pane window 
transoms, and corbelled brick 

cl1imneys. A comparison with its illustration in Hinsdale the Bea11tiful p. 13 shows the brick 
house has not been changed much since 1893, except for extending the front porch around to the 
north side and simplifying its ornament. The historic coach house is still standing. The first 
owner, Heman Fox, was in the dry goods business with h is brother Charles, in Fullersburg (now 
a section of north Hinsdale .) In 1875 Fox Brothers moved to a brick building al the southwest 
comer of Washington and Hinsdale avenues in Hinsdale. The Fox house has been awarded a 
Hinsdale Historical Society plaque, is on the Hinsdale Historic Preservation Commission Map, 
and was featured in Architectural Walks and Architectural Gems of Hinsdale. Tt is included in 
Sterling, VoL l, p. 192. It may be eligible for listing on the National Register ofHisto1ic P laces 
under Criterion C for architecture. 

12 Bf Gl!ANACICI 
~ 111\TOIICCD!UtllUIITS 

306 N. Garfield Stl'cel, c. 1890 
A more restrained ex.ample of the 
Qu.een Anne style, the house at 306 
N. Garfield nonetheless Jias an 
irregularity or massing with its 
projecting bays and wraparound 
porch, together with some 
decorative ornamental features, 
lhat place it within the Queen Anne 
style. Noteworthy are the 
polygonal tower on the southwest 
comer and polygonal bay on the 
north elevation, as well as the 
exposed ratler tails under the eaves 
and the double door entrance. 

Architectural Resources In Hinsdale, IL 
North Hinsdale Survey Area, 2005 
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Village of Hinsdale 
Community Development Department 

19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (630) 789-7030 
 

 
HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST  

PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET 
 

Address 
134 S. Park Avenue 

 

County 
DuPage 

PIN / Parcel Number 
09-12-207-017 

Zoning District 
R-1 Single Family Zoning District 

Land Use 
Single-Family  

Historic Name 
Charles G. Root House 

Architect 
N/A 

Date Constructed 
c.1890 

Architectural Style 
Queen Anne  

Past Historic Surveys / Historic Significance 
• Designated Local Landmark (Ord. No. O2002-59) 
• Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - Significant / Historically Significant 
• Robbins Park I (2002) – Significant 
• 2016 Certificate of Appropriateness Approval and Building Permits - First and Second Floor Rear Addition 

Additional Photos 

  













134 South Park Avenue – Private Residence 
 

 
 
The building is located on a curvilinear street, on top of a slight rise on a wide lot in the historic Robbins 
Park subdivision.  The two and one-half story wood frame and wood clad building was constructed in c. 
1904 in the Colonial Revival style and was designated as a landmark on October 1, 2002.  It retains 
nearly all of its original elements.   

 
The Colonial Revival structure has numerous high style features including a hip roof, rectangular floor 
plan and multilight double-hung windows with art glass inserts.  The front entrance is elliptically-arched 
and has a molded surround with a central keystone.  A large semi-circular three-season side porch is 
located on the south side of the building.  The porch has a flat roof deck and turned wood balustrades.  
Very prominent on the exterior are the front entrance portico and the rear porte cochere.  The portico 
has ionic columns and fluted piers and is supported with a graceful dentiled entablature and curved 
pediment with dentils.  Fluted Tuscan columns are located along the outside edge of the side porch. 
Beautiful art glass is found in several areas, including the front entrance doors and transom, the tall 
Palladian window above the rear porte cochere, and the semicircular-arched window in the dining 
room.  The building blends the massing of the Colonial Revival style with the picturesque details of the 
Queen Anne style. 
 

 
c. 1912 – photograph courtesy of Hinsdale Historical Society. 







































 

Architectural Resources in the Robbins Survey Area 
Historic Certification Consultants, 2002 
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is frequently called Richardsonian 
Romanesque. The first of his buildings in this 
style was the 1880 rectory for Trinity Church 
in Boston. The style was expensive for 
houses, but became popular for large public 
buildings during the 1880s and continued to 
be used through about 1900.  
 

 
Figure 15:  Grant House, 306 E. First Street 

Although there is only one building in the 
survey area in this style, it is one of 
Hinsdale’s most architecturally significant 
structures.  The Elizabeth Grant house at 306 
E. First Street, built in 1890, combines 
Romanesque arches and rusticated stone 
elements with Queen Anne-style detailing. 
Limestone arches sit atop squat columns at 
both the recessed corner front entry and the 
impressive porte cochere.  Each has a stone 
balustrade. There is also a stepped stone 
parapet on the west side gable and stone 
stringcourses accent the predominately red 
brick facades. Queen Anne detailing is 
apparent in the multi-light front window with 
a leaded transom and the paired front doors 
with transom. This house may be eligible for 
individual listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places under Criterion C, 
architecture.   
 
COLONIAL REVIVAL 
 

 
Figure 16:  Root House, 134 S. Park Avenue 

The Colonial Revival style dates from the 
1876 Centennial Exhibition in Philadelphia 
until the mid-1950s and became the most 
popular historical revival style throughout the 
country between World Wars I and II.  Many 
people chose Colonial Revival architecture 
because of its basic simplicity and its patriotic 
associations with early American 18th century 
homes.  Whether derived from stately red 
brick Georgian examples or more modest 
clapboard structures, most of these buildings 
are symmetrical and rectangular in plan; some 
have wings attached to the side.  Detailing is 
derived from classical sources, partly due to 
the influence of classicism that dominated the 
1893 World's Columbian Exposition.  Many 
front facades have classical – temple-like – 
entrances with projecting porticos topped by a 
pediment.  Paneled doors flanked by 
sidelights and topped by rectangular transoms 
or fanlights are common, as are multi-pane 
double-hung windows with shutters.  
 
There are 32 Colonial Revival structures in 
the survey area, of which 31 are residential.  
Because of its enduring popularity, the 
Colonial Revival style has the greatest span in 
construction dates of any other style. The 
earliest Colonial Revival house in the survey 
area dates from 1894, while the most recent is 
from 1991.  Twenty-eight of the structures are 
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Architectural Resources in the Robbins Survey Area 
Historic Certification Consultants, 2002 

31

historic (built in 1950 or before).  The 
following nine houses and one church are 
ranked locally significant: the Charles E. and 
Carrie Raymond House at 425 E. Third Street 
built in 1893, the George H. and Carrie R. 
Mitchell House at 244 E. First Street designed 
by Shepley Rutan & Coolidge and built in 
1893, the Robert M. and Mary Dean House at 
337 E. Third Street built in 1895, the Frank 
Osgood Butler House at 230 E. First Street 
designed by George William Ashby and built 
in 1898, the Charles G. Root House at 134 S. 
Park Avenue built c. 1904, the Howard 
George Hetzler House at 26 S. Park Avenue 
built c. 1905, 14 S. Oak Street built c. 1910, 
341 S. Elm Street built c. 1915, and 419 E. 
First Street built in c. 1920. Of these, the 
Raymond House, the Dean House, the Butler 
House, and the Root House are also included 
in the Illinois Historic Sites Survey. The only 
non-residential building in the survey area in 
the Colonial Revival style is the First Church 
of Christ, Scientist at 405 E. First Street 
designed by Spencer Solon Beman and built 
in 1950.  
 
The Charles G. Root House at 134 S. Park 
Avenue is a fine example of the Colonial 
Revival style in Hinsdale with notable 
detailing. It has wide tongue-and-groove 
siding on the first floor and narrow raked 
siding at the second. Unlike many examples 
of the Colonial Revival style, this house is 
asymmetrical in its form, with a corner tower 
and conical roof on one side, balanced by a 
curved sun porch on the opposite side with 
flat roof, fluted Tuscan columns, and wood 
balustrade above. Characteristic Colonial 
features include the front entry porch with 
segmental arched pediment, and the nine-
over-one and six-over-one multi-light 
windows throughout. The hipped roof with 
hipped roof dormers is also a Colonial feature.  
  

 
Figure 17:  Hetzler House, 26 S. Park Avenue 

The Howard George Hetzler House at 26 S. 
Park Avenue is an impressive example of an 
early subtype of the Colonial Revival style. 
This subtype has a mixture of elements 
characteristic of other styles being built at the 
turn of the 20th century. It is rectangular and 
symmetrical in its massing, with a low-pitched 
hipped roof punctuated by a hipped roof 
dormer. Both the principal roof and the roof of 
the full-width front porch have broad eaves as 
was common in the Prairie School and its 
popular derivation, the American Foursquare. 
Colonial features are evident, however, in the 
Palladian window on the second floor over the 
front entry, and the front entry itself with 
transom and sidelights. The porch has paired, 
fluted columns and a brick porch rail. Mr. 
Hetzler was a railway executive with the 
Chicago, Burlington, and Quincy Railroad.  
 
The Church of Christ, Scientist, at 405 E. First 
Street, was designed by Spencer Solon 
Beman, son of famous Chicago architect 
Solon Spencer Beman. The younger Beman 
was known largely for his Christian Scientist 
designs, and this church is typical of his work. 
 Although low and long like many of the 
residential ranch types of the 1950s, the front 
façade is dominated by a classical-style 
portico topped with a stacked steeple with 
pedimented vents and spire. The front door 
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Downers Grove 
Township Assessor's 
Office Property Sketch



Village of Hinsdale 
Community Development Department 

19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

 (630) 789-7030 
 

 
 HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT STRUCTURES PROPERTY LIST  

PROPERTY INFORMATION SHEET 
 

Address 
408 S. Washington Street 

 

County 
DuPage 

PIN / Parcel Number 
09-12-125-010 

Zoning District 
R-4 Single Family Zoning District 

Land Use 
Single-Family  

Historic Name 
N/A 

Architect 
N/A 

Date Constructed 
c.1910 

Architectural Style 
Craftsman  

Past Historic Surveys / Historic Significance 
• Reconnaissance Survey (1999) - Significant / Historically Significant 
• Town of Hinsdale Survey (2001) - Significant 

 







be eligible for individual listing on the National Register of Historic Places under criterion c, 

architecture. 

CRAFTSMAN 

The Craftsman style is generally characterized by low-pitched roofs with deep overhanging eaves, 
exposed railer ends, decorative brackets or knee braces under shallow gable roofs, donners, and a 
deep front porch. Windows are frequently double-hung sash with three panes in the upper sash and 
one in ll1e lower. Crafisman detailing was frequently combined with !be bungalow form, and 
Craftsman Bw1galows, inspired by the work of California archltecis Greene and Greene, were widely 
published in archltectural journals and popular home magazines of U1e day. Plans were often 
included in articles about the style, and the Craftsman Bungalow became one of the country's most 
popular house styles during the teens and twenties. Unlike the ltalianate, Victorian Gothic Revival, 
and Queen Anne structures that preceded them. these homes were designed for households without 
servants and had simple detailing. Craftsman houses often share similar characteristics witJ1 Tudor 
Revival style houses, Both styles have English roots, with the Craftsman style growing out of the 
Alts anti Crafts Movement. Although they were built into the 1920s, Craftsman homes were 
partiCLLlarly popular between 1901 and 1916, when the architect and furniture maker Gustav Stickley 
published his magazine, The Cmftsman. 

There are eleven Crafisrnan style houses and one r.J 
Craftsman Bungalow in the survey area, of which i. ':. 
two are ranked locally significant and one is ranked ,, 
potentially significant. Ihe significant Craftsman h . ' style houses are 318 and 408 S. Washmgton Street, 
and both are included in the lllinois Historic 
Stmctures Survey. 

The Robert L. Woodcock House built c. 1910 al 318 
S. Washington Street, is a handsome example o fll1e 
Craftsman style. II features an entry canopy on the 
front and side doors with brackets, wide overhanging 
eaves with brackets, and exposed rafter tails. There Rubert L. Woodcock Hou;e, 31& s. Washington Stn:et 

arc multi light casement windows throughout, some 
with transoms. 

COLONIAL REVIV Al 

The Colonial Revival style dates from the 1876 centennial celebration until the mid- I 950s and 
became the most popular historical revival style throughouttl1e couuiry between World Wars 1 and 
11. Many people chose Colonial Revival architecture because of its basic simplicity and its patriotic 
associations with early American 181h century homes. Whether derived from stately red brick 

24 

Architectural Resources in the Town of Hinsdale 
Historic Certification Consultants, 2001 
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Downers Grove Township 
Assessor's Office Property Sketch



AGENDA ITEM #_____ 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 3, 2023 

TO: Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:  Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 

RE: Case A-30-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 33 E. First Street – Frederick Lynn – Installation of 
One (1) Wall Sign  

FOR: November 6, 2023 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale received a sign permit application from Frederick Lynn LLC requesting approval to 
install one (1) new wall sign on the building located at 33 E. First Street. The existing two-story building is 
located in the B-2 Central Business District and the Downtown Historic District.  

On November 16, 2021, by Ordinance No. No. O2021-34, the Village Board approved an Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plan to allow for improvements to the building façade and site. Frederick Lynn will 
occupy the second floor tenant space and has a separate ground level entrance on First Street. A first floor 
tenant has not been identified yet.   

Frederick Lynn must remove all temporary window signage installed on the first floor storefront windows 
as part of this sign permit approval.    

Request and Analysis 

The applicant is requesting to install one (1) wall sign on the façade facing First Street to be externally 
illuminated by gooseneck lights. The sign will consist of white aluminum letters that will be stud mounted 
onto black custom background panels that will have a woodgrain finish. The panels can be considered an 
architectural feature as they will be installed on both the front and side areas of the existing sign panel. 
The sign will measure 12.3” tall and 180” wide, with an overall sign face area of 15.3 square feet.  

Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user. A maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy valance, 
wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one square 
foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty five 
(25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. The business has a separate ground
floor entrance. The proposed wall sign meets the maximum 25 square feet of total sign face area allowed
for the tenant space.
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              MEMORANDUM 

 
The sign will be externally illuminated by three (3) black gooseneck lights. The existing three (3) gooseneck 
lights will be replaced with similar light fixtures, as shown in the application packet. Per Section 9-106, in 
no event shall the illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, 
exceed fifty (50) foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign 
face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so 
designed, located, shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the 
casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property or streets.  
 
Process 

Per Section 11-607(D), sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission 
and do not require public notification. Per Village Code Section 14-5-1(B), the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall be advisory only. The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no 
further action required by the Board of Trustees. Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted 
pursuant to this section unless the applicant shall establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 
1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View 
3. Birds Eye View  
4. Street View  
5. Sign Application and Exhibits 
 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 

 

 

33 E. First Street 



 
 

Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

 

33 E. First Street 
 



Aerial View – 33 E. First Street 

 

 

 
 

33 E. First Street 



Birds Eye View – 33 E. First Street 

 

 

 

33 E. First Street 



Street View – 33 E. First Street 
 

 

 



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

APPLICATION FOR SIGN PERMIT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

Name: ___________________________________ 
Address: _________________________________ 
City/Zip: _________________________________ 
Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 
E-Mail: __________________________________ 
Contact Name: ___________________________ 
 

Applicant 

Name: ___________________________________ 
Address: _________________________________ 
City/Zip: _________________________________ 
Phone/Fax: (___) ___________/______________ 
E-Mail: __________________________________ 
Contact Name: ___________________________ 
 

Contractor 

   Sign Information:  
Overall Size (Square Feet): _______  ( ____ x _____ ) 

Overall Height from Grade: _____________ Ft. 

Proposed Colors (Maximum of Three Colors): 

X __________________ 

Y ___________________ 

Z ___________________ 

 

 

Site Information: 
Lot/Street Frontage: _______________________ 

Building/Tenant Frontage: __________________ 

Existing Sign Information: 

Business Name: __________________________ 

Size of Sign: _______________ Square Feet  
Business Name: __________________________ 

Size of Sign: _______________ Square Feet  
 

 
 

I hereby acknowledge that I have read this application and the attached instruction sheet and state that it is correct 
and agree to comply with all Village of Hinsdale Ordinances. 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant    Date 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Signature of Building Owner    Date 
 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY ± DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE 
  
Total square footage: __________________ x $4.00 = ________ (Minimum $75.00) 
 
Plan Commission Approval Date: ___________  Administrative Approval Date: ___________ 
 
 

ADDRESS OF SIGN LOCATION:      

ZONING DISTRICT: 

SIGN TYPE:  

ILLUMINATION          

  

   

Melissa Waters
Frederick Lynn LLC

Melissa Waters
33 E 1st Street

Melissa Waters
312

Melissa Waters
399-1379

Melissa Waters
Green Candle LLC



 

 

Aaron Comes 
524 S Spring Ave 
LaGrange, IL 60525 
312-399-1379 
 
7/19/2023 
 
 
 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
I Aaron Comes, owner of the building located at 33 E 1st Street, Hinsdale, IL, hereby authorize Right Way 
Signs LLC. to complete and sign any necessary applications and forms regarding the signage at the 
aforementioned property on my behalf.  Please the attached deed as Proof of Ownership. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Aaron Comes 
 







180”

12.3”

Frederick Lynn
CLIENT

33 E 1st Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

ADDRESS

Melissa Waters
melissa@fredericklynn.com

CONTACT INFO

NOTES

9/20/23
DATE

2
VERSION

Letter detail

1/4” thick flat-cut aluminum, painted satin white
Stud mount flush to backer panels

Non-illuminated



SIDE PANEL
Produced same as main sign (Note: Survey required to verify dimensions before production)

33”

98.28” 106.6”

203-7/8”

Letters: 
1/4” thick flat-cut aluminum, painted satin white

Stud mount flush to backer panels

Backer:
1.5” thick HDU panels, sandblasted with woodgrain finish

Painted satin black, attached flush to wall with tapcon screws through face (screws painted black to match sign)
Note: Produced in 2 pieces due to large size

65.25”

33”

Frederick Lynn
CLIENT

33 E 1st Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

ADDRESS

Melissa Waters
melissa@fredericklynn.com

CONTACT INFO

NOTES

9/20/23
DATE

2
VERSION

Black

White



Frederick Lynn
CLIENT

33 E 1st Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

ADDRESS

Melissa Waters
melissa@fredericklynn.com

CONTACT INFO

NOTES

9/20/23
DATE

2
VERSION

Mockup of placement on building

Sign will be down-lit with (3) 
goose neck lamps. Existing lamps 
(as-shown) to be replaced with 
new goose neck lamps (details 
on following page). 

Lamps will not protrude more 
than 18” from the face of the sign. 

Illumination of the sign will not 
exceed 50 foot-candles. 

Illumination will be directed to 
illuminate only the sign face and 
shades will prevent glare or 
direct light upon adjacent 
property or streets.



Frederick Lynn
CLIENT

33 E 1st Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

ADDRESS

Melissa Waters
melissa@fredericklynn.com

CONTACT INFO

NOTES

9/20/23
DATE

2
VERSION

Mockup of placement on building

Sign mounting height is 14’ from
adjacent grade to the top of the sign. 



Frederick Lynn
CLIENT

33 E 1st Street
Hinsdale, IL 60521

ADDRESS

Melissa Waters
melissa@fredericklynn.com

CONTACT INFO

NOTES

9/20/23
DATE

2
VERSION

Black

White

RAS10 - R SERIES 10˝ ANGLE SHADE Dimensions
Width 10”
Height 11”
Wire 100”

Finish & Material

Wattage
Bulbs 1-Medium A21
Watts per Bulb 200W
Voltage 120V 

Certification
UL Listed Wet Location

Finishes 
 
  
 
 
 

SB - Satin Black 

 
 
 
 

 

Material Metal 

RGN30 - R SERIES GOOSE NECK (WALL MOUNT) Dimensions
Length 30”
Width  4.5”
Height 13”

Finish & Material
Finishes 
 
 

SB - Satin Black  

Material Metal 

! "#
#$%%"&! '#( )

* ( #+') *

New Goose neck lighting details



AGENDA ITEM #_____ 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 3, 2023 

TO: Chairman Bohnen and Historic Preservation Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:  Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 

RE: Case A-33-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 114 S. Washington Street – Que Miso – Installation of 
One (1) Wall Sign  

FOR: November 6, 2023 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale received a sign permit application from Que Miso requesting approval to install 
one (1) new wall sign for the new restaurant tenant located at 114 S. Washington Street. The existing one-
story building is located in the B-2 Central Business District and the Downtown Historic District. 

Request and Analysis 

The applicant is requesting to install one (1) halo-lit wall sign on the façade of the tenant space facing 
Washington Street. The wall sign will consist of terra cotta colored aluminum halo-lit channel letters. The 
sign will measure 30” tall and 55” wide, with an overall sign face area of 11.5 square feet. No permanent 
window signage is proposed.  

Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user. A maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy valance, 
wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one square 
foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty five 
(25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. The proposed wall sign meets the
maximum 25 square feet of total sign face area allowed for the tenant space.

A rendering has been provided to show what the sign will look like illumined at night. Per Section 9-106, 
in no event shall the illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, 
exceed fifty (50) foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign 
face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so 
designed, located, shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the 
casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property or streets.  

Process 

Per Section 11-607(D), sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission 
and do not require public notification. Per Village Code Section 14-5-1(B), the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall be advisory only.  
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              MEMORANDUM 

The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further action required by the Board of 
Trustees. Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the 
applicant shall establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View  
3. Birds Eye View  
4. Street View  
5. Sign Application and Exhibits 
 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

114 S. Washington Street 



 
 

Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

  

114 S. Washington 
 



Aerial View – 114 S. Washington Street  
 
 

 

114 S. Washington Street 



 



Birds Eye View – 114 S. Washington Street 
 
 

 

114 S. Washington 



Street View – 114 S. Washington Street 



collin@quemiso.com
Signature

collin@quemiso.com
Free text
10/4/23



Qué Miso
(630)-277-9349

114 S Washington Street
Hinsdale IL, 60521

To whom it may concern Qué Miso and its managers authorize sign solutions inc to fabricate
and install the signage as shown in the application. On the building of 114 s Washington Street.

Collin Ringelstetter-Ennis, Manager Haute Taco LLC (D.B.A. Qué Miso)

________________________________

To whom it may concern 112-114 washington LLC and its managers authorize Sign Solutions
inc to fabricate and install the signage as shown in the application. On the building of 114 s
Washington Street.

Simerneet Singh, 112-114 Washington LLC

____________________________________

collin@quemiso.com
Signature

collin@quemiso.com
Signature







AGENDA ITEM #_____ 

PLAN COMMISSION 
MEMORANDUM 

DATE: November 3, 2023 

TO: Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC: Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

FROM:  Bethany Salmon, Village Planner 

RE: Case A-38-2023 – Sign Permit Review – 32 E. First Street – Rush University Medical Center – 
Installation of One (1) Wall Sign 

FOR: November 8, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale received a sign permit application from Rush University Medical Center requesting 
approval to install one (1) new wall sign for a new second floor medical office tenant located at 32 E. First 
Street. The existing two-story, multi-tenant building is located in the B-2 Central Business District. The 
building, known as Garfield Crossing, is not located in the Downtown Historic District, but has historically 
been reviewed by the Historic Preservation Commission. 

The second floor of the building will be occupied by two tenants. The majority of the second floor office 
space, approximately 8,200 square feet, will be occupied by Rush University Medical Center for use as an 
outpatient center and medical offices. Ferguson Hill Wealth Management, a financial advisor office, is 
currently located in Suite 200 and occupies approximately 2,000 square feet of the second floor. The 
applicant has provided an interior floor plan for the second floor showing the division of the tenant spaces. 

Request and Analysis 

Rush University Medical Center is requesting to install one (1) internally-illuminated wall sign in the 
existing sign band area located above the central shared entrance for the second floor tenants on the 
north elevation facing First Street. The proposed wall sign measures 28” tall and 127” wide, with an overall 
sign face area of 24.7 square feet. The sign consists of black face-lit illuminated channel letters and a green 
logo mounted to a raceway. The raceway will be painted to match the color of the stone façade behind 
the sign. No permanent window signage is proposed. 

A rendering has been provided to show what the sign will look like illumined at night. Per Section 9-106, 
in no event shall the illumination of any sign, resulting from any internal or external artificial light source, 
exceed fifty (50) foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter held perpendicular to the sign 
face at a distance equal to the narrowest dimension of such sign face. All artificial illumination shall be so 
designed, located, shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces and to prevent the 
casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property or streets.  
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              MEMORANDUM 

Per Section 9-106(J), in the B-2 District, two (2) awning valance, canopy valance, wall, or permanent 
window signs are allowed per user. A maximum gross surface area of all awning valance, canopy valance, 
wall, and permanent window signs for the entire building shall not exceed the greater of: 1) one square 
foot per foot of building frontage, up to a maximum of one hundred (100) square feet, or 2) twenty five 
(25) square feet for each business that has a separate ground level principal entrance directly to the 
outside of the building onto a street, alley, courtyard, or parking lot. As noted above, the two businesses 
on the second floor have a shared entrance to the outside of the building. Therefore, the applicant is not 
afforded a twenty-five (25) square foot wall sign by right under the Zoning Code requirements.   
 
Per Section 11-607(F), the Plan Commission has the authority to modify certain sign regulations, including 
to allow one of the following signs to be located on a lot where signs of such functional types are not 
otherwise allowed: business sign, identification sign, joint identification sign, off premises identification 
sign, and public service sign. No modification shall be unless the applicant properly applies for the specific 
relief required and the applicant establishes compliance with all of the following standards: 

1. General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of section 9-106 of this code would 
create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty not caused by an act or omission of the applicant. 

2. Unusual Physical Limitations: The subject property or the structure on which the sign is proposed to 
be located is burdened with an unusual physical limitation, such as an irregular shape, unusual 
geographic location, exceptional topographical feature, or other extraordinary physical condition, 
that is peculiar to the subject property and that is more than merely an inconvenience or cost 
consideration to the applicant. 

3. Adverse Impacts: The modification, if granted, would have no adverse impact on any abutting or 
adjacent property and no adverse impact on the essential character of any part of or all of the 
neighborhood of the subject property. 

4. Public Health And Safety: The modification, if granted, would have no adverse impact on, and would 
not endanger, the public health or safety. 

5. Compliance With Permit Standards: The application satisfies the standards of subsection E of this 
section. 

 
The applicant has provided a cover letter requesting approval of a modification to the sign regulations to 
allow for an identification sign / wall sign on the lot where the sign is otherwise not allowed. Rush 
University Medical Center would be allowed to install the following permanent sign types, subject to 
Village approval, if a modification to the sign regulations is not approved by the Plan Commission: 

• Projecting Sign: Rush University Medical Center would be allowed a projecting sign measuring three 
(3) square feet per sign face. If they combined signage with the other second floor tenant, Ferguson 
Hill Wealth Management, they would be allowed to install a projecting sign with a maximum total sign 
face area of five (5) square feet.  

• Nameplate Sign: Nameplate signs are typically a small directory wall sign installed next to a shared 
entrance for businesses that do not have a separate entrance and that are not located on the ground 
floor of a building. Businesses are allowed one non-illuminated nameplate sign per occupancy with a 
maximum sign face area of one (1) square foot. Nameplate signs are considered permit exempt and 
do not require approval by the Historic Preservation Commission or Plan Commission. 
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Meeting History 

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting – November 6, 2023 – The November 1, 2023 regular meeting 
of the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) was rescheduled to November 6, 2023. Due to the limited 
timeframe between meetings, a summary of the HPC meeting and the recommendation from the 
Commission was not able at the time of the writing of this staff report.  
 
Staff will provide a summary of the discussion and the vote of the HPC meeting at the Plan Commission 
meeting on November 8, 2023.  
 
Process 

Per Section 11-607(D), sign permit applications shall be reviewed and approved by the Plan Commission 
and do not require public notification. Per Village Code Section 14-5-1(B), the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall review signage in the Historic District. The final decision of the Historic Preservation 
Commission shall be advisory only.  
 
The Plan Commission maintains final authority on signage with no further action required by the Board of 
Trustees. Per Section 11-607(E), no sign permit shall be granted pursuant to this section unless the 
applicant shall establish that: 

1. Visual Compatibility: The proposed sign will be visually compatible with the building on which the 
sign is proposed to be located and surrounding buildings and structures in terms of height, size, 
proportion, scale, materials, texture, colors, and shapes. 

2. Quality of Design and Construction: The proposed sign will be constructed and maintained with a 
design and materials of high quality and good relationship with the design and character of the 
neighborhood. 

3. Appropriateness to Activity: The proposed sign is appropriate to and necessary for the activity to 
which it pertains. 

4. Appropriateness to Site: The proposed sign will be appropriate to its location in terms of design, 
landscaping, and orientation on the site, and will not create a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic, detract from the value or enjoyment of neighboring properties, or unduly increase the 
number of signs in the area. 

 
Attachments 

1. Zoning Map and Project Location 
2. Aerial View  
3. Birds Eye View  
4. Street View  
5. Sign Application and Exhibits 
 



Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location  
 
 

 

32 E. First Street 



 
 

Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
 

 

  

32 E. First Street 
 



Aerial View – 32 E. First Street  
 
 

 
 

32 E. First Street 



Birds Eye View – 32 E. First Street 
 
 

 

32 E. First Street 



Street View – 32 E. First Street 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Street View – 32 E. First Street 
 

 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: AB99AAB4-660E-4ACF-82F7-ECA6AF67042D
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220 ft / 28.75 ft
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850 West Jackson Boulevard 
Suite 850 
Chicago, Illinois 60607 

312.491.3060 
 
chicagodesignnetwork.com 

20 October 2023 
 
Village of Hinsdale 
Building & Zoning Department 
 
RE: RUSH Hinsdale Outpatient Center 

32 E. 1st Street, Hinsdale, IL 
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
Rush University System for Health, a national leader in patient care, education, 
research and community partnerships, is excited to bring an outpatient center to 
the Village of Hinsdale expanding access to primary and specialty care in Chicago’s 
western suburbs. 
 
RUSH Hinsdale plans to open at 32 E 1st Street in early 2024. The outpatient 
center will feature medical offices, bringing primary and specialty care to Hinsdale 
and surrounding suburbs, including reproductive endocrinology and infertility care. 
 
Per Section 11-607 of the code we are seeking Plan Commission approval for a 
business wall sign for a second-floor tenant space that does not have a separate 
ground floor principle entry directly to the exterior. RUSH Hinsdale will be the 
primary second floor tenant alongside Ferguson Hill Wealth Management and 
occupy over 9,000 square feet which consists of over eighty percent of the 
leasable floor space. Rush is seeking permission to install a business wall sign 
through a permitted modification, which the plan commission has the authority to 
grant. This letter is being filed in connection with the enclosed sign permit 
application. 
 
Please find below confirmation that this sign permit request complies with the 
modification standards for a permitted modification as is set forth in the village 
zoning code.  
 

• General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of section 
9-106 of the code would cause a hardship and practical difficulty not 
caused by an act or omission of the applicant. If Rush is not permitted to 
install this business wall sign there is potential confusion for patients 
finding the clinic and navigating to see their providers. 

• Unusual Physical Limitations: The subject property on which the sign is 
proposed to be located is burdened with an unusual physical limitation that 
is peculiar to the subject property and that is more than merely an 
inconvenience or cost consideration to the applicant.  This property is 
unique with respect to the entry points and size of the second floor 
commercial space. As the tenant space is large and located on the second-
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floor additional wayfinding is required to ensure patients are able to 
identify the correct building entry point.  

• Adverse Impacts: The modification, if granted, would have no adverse 
impact on any abutting or adjacent property and no adverse impact on the 
essential character of any part of or all of the neighborhood of the subject 
property. The proposed sign will be located within an area delineated with 
accent brickwork similar to existing signage and blend into the overall 
façade rhythm of the building and the neighborhood. 

• Public Health And Safety: The modification, if granted, would have no 
adverse impact on, and would not endanger, the public health or safety. 

• Compliance With Permit Standards: The proposed signage satisfies the 
standards set forth in subsection E as it relates to visual compatibility, 
quality of design and construction, as well as, appropriateness to activity 
and site. 

 
 
We look forward to your favorable consideration of the sign permit application 
enclosed. Please reach out with any questions related to the application or any of 
the standards outlined above. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Deborah J. Winchester 
Principal 
 
O 312.491.3063 
M 847.530.5125 
debbie.winchester@chicagodesignnetwork.com 
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PROJECT SCHEDULE
PGQTY.SIGN TYPE / DESCRIPTION

1Building Front Wall Signage

1Building Back Wall Signage

VICINITY MAP

32 E. First St, Hinsdale, IL

32 E. First St, 
Hinsdale, IL

PROJECT:

32 E. First St, Hinsdale, IL
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32 E. First St, Hinsdale, IL

Quantity:
Overall Height:
Overall Length:
Total Sq. Ft.:

Internally Illuminated

TWO (2)
28.0”
127.0”
24.677 ft²

Logo
To be painted to match Pantone 349C
To be painted to match Pantone 349C
To be painted to match Pantone 349C

Returns:
Back:
Trimcap:
Face:

Illumination: White LED
NOTE:
- White interiors to increase illumination
- All paint two-stage automotive acrylic

3/16” white acrylic pasted with 
3M Scotchcal Translucent Graphic 
Film Series 3630

Text
Black
Black
To be painted Black

Returns:
Back:
Trimcap:
Face: 3/16” white acrylic pasted with 

3M™ Dual Color Film 3635-222,
Day / Night vinyl film

Front-Lit, Plex-Face Channel Letters w/ LED, Raceway Mounted

S P E C I F I C A T I O N S

25.864”

28
.0

”

28
.0

”
EQ

EQ

41
.0

”

26.303”

92.654”

127.0” EQEQ

276.0”

10” RACEWAY PAINTED TO MATCH EXISTING WALL COLOR

ELECTRICAL NOTES
Sign Company DOES NOT provide primary electrical to sign.

Power to the sign must be done by a licensed electrical contractor or licensed electrician.
1. A minimum of one dedicated 120V 20A circuit
2. Junction box installed within 6 feet of sign
3. Three wires: Line, Ground, Neutral

Each sign must have:

5" .060" ALUMINUM

LED POWER SUPPLY

N.T.S.

PRIMARY ELECTRICAL
(NEC 600-5) SEE ELEC. NOTES

LISTED DISCONNECT
SWITCH (NEC 600-6)
WITHIN SIGHT OF SIGN

1" TRIMCAP

1/4" DRAIN HOLES
(LETTERS AND RACEWAY)

LISTED BUSHING

LED

3/16" ACRYLIC

CHANNEL LETTER - TYPICAL SECTION - FRONT-LIT PLASTIC FACE

.040" ALUMINUM
5" RETURN

FASTENERS AS REQ'D.
BY LOCAL JURISDICTION

EXTRUDED
ALUMINUM ENCLOSURE

LED MODULES

· Illumination.
Lighting details need to be provided. Verify the following code 
requirements are met:

o Signs may be illuminated only by indirect or internal white light not 
exceeding 50 foot-candles when measured with a standard light meter 
held perpendicular to the sign face at a distance equal to the narrowest 
dimension of such sign face. All arti�cial illumination shall be so designed, 
located, shielded, and directed as to illuminate only the sign face or faces 
and to prevent the casting of glare or direct light upon adjacent property 
or streets.
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32 E. First St, Hinsdale, IL

BEFORE

AFTER NIGHT VIEW

17’
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229 Symonds Drive
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Bill Marlow

8.02.23
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"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2023 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.
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4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

8

(7) 2'-0" x 1'-6" Double Face Non-Illuminated Marker Signs
Panel:   .125" thk.  Aluminum Painted Black - Smooth Satin Finish (Both Sides)
Graphics:  3M 7725-10 White Vinyl
 - Logo is Full-Color Print on 3M 7725-10 White Viny
Frame:  ADS24x18 - Aluminum Painted Black
Post:  3" Round - Smooth - Painted Black
Collar:   ¼" Aluminum Accent Brackets on Slip-Collar - Painted Black
Base:   Aluminum Slip on Base 500-3 Mini Base - Painted Black
Mounting:  Direct Burial - 1'-0" dia. x 3-6" deep Concrete Foundation

2
'-0

"

2
'-0

"

7
'-5

"

3
'-6

"

1'-0"

1'-6"

1'-6"

Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

 ¼" Aluminum
Accent Brackets

on Slip-Collar

 Aluminum Frame - ADS-24x18
*Top Rail Removable

 .125" Aluminum Insert Panel
- Double Face Vinyl Graphics

 3" Aluminum
Post - Smooth

 Aluminum Slip on Base
500-3 Mini Base

 Aluminum Post
Direct Burial in Concrete Foundation

 Augered Concrete Foundation

ROBBINS PARK HISTORIC DISTRICT GATEWAY SIGN - OPTION A

1" = 1'



Ma� Sopchyk / JK

229 Symonds Drive
Hinsdale, IL 60521

Bill Marlow

8.02.23

as noted

2 of 10

hins7778

7778

"This Document is owned by, and the information contained in it is proprietary to, Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. By receipt hereof the holder agrees not to use the information, disclose it to any third party,
nor reproduce this document without the prior written consent of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company. Holder also agrees to immediately return this document upon request of Parvin-Clauss Sign Company."

© Copyright 2023 by Parvin-Clauss Sign Co.

PROJECT:

CUSTOMER APPROVAL:

REVISIONS:
1

2

3

4

5

6

DATE

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

REPRESENTATIVE

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

SHEET NO.

ESTIMATE / JOB NUMBER

FILE NAME

7

8

Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.
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(7) 2'-0" x 1'-6" Double Face Non-Illuminated Marker Signs
Panel:   .125" thk.  Aluminum Painted Black - Smooth Satin Finish (Both Sides)
Graphics:  3M 7725-10 White Vinyl
 - Logo is Full-Color Print on 3M 7725-10 White Viny
Frame:  ADS24x18 - Aluminum Painted Black
Post:  3" Round - Smooth - Painted Black
Collar:   ¼" Aluminum Accent Brackets on Slip-Collar - Painted Black
Base:   Aluminum Slip on Base 500-3 Mini Base - Painted Black
Mounting:  Direct Burial - 1'-0" dia. x 3-6" deep Concrete Foundation
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"
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"
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 ¼" Aluminum
Accent Brackets

on Slip-Collar

 Aluminum Frame - ADS-24x18
*Top Rail Removable

 .125" Aluminum Insert Panel
- Double Face Vinyl Graphics

 3" Aluminum
Post - Smooth

 Aluminum Slip on Base
500-3 Mini Base

 Aluminum Post
Direct Burial in Concrete Foundation

 Augered Concrete Foundation
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Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

 Aluminum Frame - ADS-24x18

3" = 1'

1" = 1'

(7) 2'-4" x 1'-8" Double Face Non-Illuminated Marker Signs
Panel:   .125" thk.  Aluminum Painted Black - Smooth Satin Finish (Both Sides)
Graphics:  3M 7725-10 White Vinyl
 - Logo is Full-Color Print on 3M 7725-10 White Viny
Frame:  ADS24x18 - Aluminum Painted Black
Post:  3" Round - Smooth - Painted Black
Collar:   ¼" Aluminum Accent Brackets on Slip-Collar - Painted Black
Base:   Aluminum Slip on Base 500-3 Mini Base - Painted Black
Mounting:  Direct Burial - 1'-0" dia. x 3-6" deep Concrete Foundation

2
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"

2
'-4

"

7
'-5

"

3
'-6

"

1'-0"

1'-8"
1'-8"

 ¼" Aluminum
Accent Brackets

on Slip-Collar

 .125" Aluminum Panels VHB Taped to Frame
- Double Face Vinyl Graphics

 3" Aluminum
Post - Smooth

 Aluminum Slip on Base
500-3 Mini Base

 Aluminum Post
Direct Burial in Concrete Foundation

 Augered Concrete Foundation
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CONSIDERATIONS FOR FINAL LOCATIONS

• Conflicts with utilities or existing street signage
• Right-of-way area / size
• Selected sign type and design
• Public Services feedback
• Neighbor feedback
• Plan Commission and Board feedback

1
2

34

Gateway  Sign Location Options

6 7

ROBBINS PARK HISTORIC DISTRICT GATEWAY SIGN LOCATION OPTIONS

5

1

5

PRIMARY GATEWAY LOCATIONS2 3 4

6 7 ADDITIONAL GATEWAY LOCATIONS
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SOUTHEAST OR SOUTHWEST CORNER OF CHICAGO AVENUE AND BLAINE STREET1

1

CHICAGO AVE

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding decorative sign
• Determine final preferred corner – Majority of HPC 

preferred west corner
• Utility conflicts to be determined

Reference Map

Potential Sign Location (Select One Corner)

Aerial View

ROBBINS PARK HISTORIC DISTRICT GATEWAY SIGN - OPTION A
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Reference Map

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding decorative sign
• Utility locations and conflicts to be determined 

(known underground utilities in this location)
• Locate off of County Line Road rather than Chicago 

Avenue due to conflicts with stop sign, utility pole, 
fire hydrant, large tree

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF COUNTY LINE ROAD AND CHICAGO AVENUE2

Potential Sign Location

2

Aerial View
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Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

NORTHWEST CORNER OF COUNTY LINE ROAD 
AND EIGHTH STREET3

3

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding decorative sign
• Limited right-of-way area – potentially relocate the 

existing bicycle sign on County Line Road and utilize 
area for a new sign

• Consideration for signs faces oriented toward different 
directions

• Utility conflicts to be determined – hydrant located on 
Eighth Street

Reference Map

Potential Sign Location

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding decorative sign
• Consideration for signs faces oriented toward different 

directions
• Limited right-of-way area – Relocate existing street sign 

to adjacent intersection
• Utility conflicts to be determined

NORTHEAST CORNER OF GARFIELD AVENUE 
AND EIGHTH STREET4

Potential Sign Location

4

Reference Map Aerial ViewAerial View
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Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

CORNERS OF GARFIELD AVENUE AND FIRST STREET5

5

Reference Map

Potential Sign Locations

Aerial View

GARFIELD AVENUE

COMMENTS
• Co-location of signage on existing street lights not 

preferred by HPC 
• Determine potential location for a freestanding 

decorative sign
• Consideration for relocating the existing no truck sign
• Utility conflicts to be determined
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Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

FIRST STREET & BLAINE STREET OR PARK AVENUE6

6

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding 

decorative sign
• Preferred location near the driveway 

on the south side of First Street 
between Grace Lutheran Church 
& 142 E. First Street (William Whitney 
House)

• Utility locations and conflicts to be 
determined 

Reference Map

Aerial View

GRACE EPISCOPAL 
CHURCH

First Street – Looking Southeast

REDEEMER 
LUTHERAN 

CHURCH
OFFICE 

BUILDING

SF HOME

SF HOME

6
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Customer is responsible for bringing sufficient
power to the location(s) of illuminated signage.

NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST CORNERS OF COUNTLINE ROAD AND FIRST STREET7

7

Reference Map

Potential Sign Location

Aerial View

COUNTY LINE ROAD

Revised Loca�on Based on Discussion at HPC Mee�ng 6/1/2022

COMMENTS
• Potential location for a freestanding decorative 

sign
• Utility conflicts to be determined – Hydrant 

located on the north side of First Street
• Relocation and consolidation of existing church 

directional signage
• Historic context -Zook House
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